
UM TED STATES DISTRICT COURT

SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

Case No. II-IOOIZ-CR-M ARTINEZ

UNITED STATES OF AM ERICA

V.

RUSH C. M ALTZ,
Defendant. /

PLEA AG REEM ENT

n e United States of America and Rush C. Maltz (hereinafter referred to as the ttdefendanf')

enter into the following apeement:

1. The defendant apees to plead guiltyto Cotmt 1 of the Indice ent filed againsthim, which

count charges the defendant with conspiracy to illegally hm est lobster both prior to and during the

commercial spiny lobster harvesting semson from artificial habitat within the Florida Keys National

M arine Sanctuary, in violation of federal law and the laws of the State of Floridw that is Title 16,

United States Code, Sections 3372(a)(1), 3372(a)(2)(A), and 3373(d)(1) and (2), and Florida

Adminislative Code, Sections 688-24.006410) and 688-24.006(10), a11 in violation of Title 18,

United States Code, Section 371. The United States apees to seek dismissal of the remaining Cotmts

of the Indic% ent, ms to this defendant, after sentencing, and further apees that it will not bring

additional charges against defendant for the hm esting or sale of fish and wildlife b% ed on conduct

known to the United States at the time of the acceptance by the Court of defendant's plea of guilty.

n e defendant is aware that the sentence will be imposed by the court aqer consideling

the Federal Sentencing Guidelines and Policy Statements ('hereinafter ttsentencing Guidelines''). n e

defendantacknowledges andunderstands thatthe courtwillcompute an advisory sentence underthe
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Sentencing Guidelines and that the applicable guidelines will be determined by the court relying in

part on the results of a Pre-sentence Investigation by the court's probation office, which

investigationwill commence afterthe guiltypleahas been entered. The defendant is also awarethat,

lmder certain circllmstances, the courtmay depart from the advisory sentencing guideline range that

it hms computed, and may raise or lower that advisory sentence tmder the Sentencing Guidelines.

The defendant is further aware and understnnds that the court is required to consider the advisory

guideline range determined under the Sentencing Guidelines, but is not bound to impose that

sentence; the court is permitted to tailor the ultimate sentence in light of other statutory concerns,

and such sentencemaybe eithermore severe or less severe thanthe Sentencing Guidelines' advisory

sentence. Knowing these facts, the defendant tmderstands and acknowledges that the court hms the

authority to impose any sentence witllin and up to the statutory maximum authorized by 1aw for the

olense identifed in parapaph 1 and that the defendant may not withdraw the plea solely as a restllt

of the sentence imposed.

3. n e defendant also understands and acknowledges that the court may impose a statutory

maximum term of imprisonment of up to 5 years with respect to the charge against lzim, followed

by aterm of supervised release of up to 3 years. In additionto aterm of imprisonment and supervised

rele%e, the court may impose a fine of up to $250,000, or the greater of twice the pectmiary gain or

loss arising lmder the relevant conduct, and may order restitution.

4. The defendant further understnnd and acknowledges that, in addition to any sentence

imposed under parapaph 3 of tlzis agreement, a special mssessment in the amotmt of $100.00 will

be imposed on the defendant. The defendant apees that any special mssessment imposed shall be

paid at the time of sentencing.
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5. 'I'he United States and the defendant apee that they will jointly recommend that the

court make the following findings and conclusions as to the proper calctllation and application of

the advisory Sentencing Guidelines tmder a11 the circlzmstances of this case:

a. Base Offense Level: Pursllnnt to Section 2Q2.1(a) of the Sentencing Guidelines, the
base offense level in this matter is Level 6.

b. Specitk Offense Characteristics: Pursllnnt to Section 2Q2.1(b)(1) of the Sentencing
Guidelines, defendant's bmse oflknse level should be increased by 2 levels because

the offense was committed for pecuniary gain.

M arket Value: That defendant's relevant conduct involved more thm1 $200,000.00

but less than $400,000.00 in retail fair market value. Under Sections 2Q2.1(b)(3)(A)
and 2B1.1(b)(1)(G), therefore, defendant's offense level should be incre%ed by +12
levels.

Chapter Three. PM  B Adiustment: Defendant should receive neither an incremse nor

a decremse in his offense level pursuant to Section 3B1.2(b).

C.

d.

e. Guideline range: That the applicable guideline range for the Count 1 conspiracy

olense committed by the defendant is Level 20.

6. 'rhe Oo ce of the United States Attom ey for the Southem District of Florida

(hereinaAer tçoffice''l reserves the right to inform the court and the probation om ce of a1l facts

pertinent to the sentencing process, including a11 relevant information concerning the offenses

committed, whether charged or not, ms well as conceY ng the defendant and the defendant's

backpound. Subject only to the express terms of any apeed-upon sentencing recommendations

contained in this apeem4nt, this Office further reserves the right to make any recommendation as

to the quality and qllnntity of punishment.

n e United States apees that it will recommend at sentencing that the court reduce

the sentencing guideline level applicable to the defendant's offense, plzrsuant to Section 3E1.1(a) of
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the Sentèncing Guidelines by -2 levels, based upon the defendnnt's recognition and affirmative and

timely acceptance of personal responsibility, resulting in a Total Adjusted Oflknse Level of 18, and

to recommend a sentence at the low end of the Glzideline Range ms determined by the Court.

However, the United States will not be required to make any of these sentencing recommendations

if the defendant: (1) fails or refuses to make 111, acctzrate, and complete disclosure to the probation

office of the circllmstnnces surrotmding the relevant offense conduct; (2) is found to have

misrepresented facts to the government prior to entering this plea apeement; or (3) commits any

misconduct after entering into this plea apeement, including but not limited to committing a state

or federal ofense, violating any term of relemse, or making false statements or misrepresentations

to any governmental entity or oftkial.

8. The defendant apees that in exchange for the tmdertakings by the Uited States

herein, which are specificallyconditioned on compliance withthis parapaph, thathe shallcooperate

fully w1t11 this Oftke by providing to the United States Attorney's Om ce within 5 business days of

entry of his plea in this matter, tmaltered copies of navigational ilttbrmation, GPS data, nautical

charfm, orcollections anddepictions inwhateverfo= recordedwMchdocllmentr dreiect locations

of artificial habitat witllin the Florida Keys National M arine Sanctuary and surrounding waters.

Defendant warrants that he will retain no copy of any portion of the foregoing information, that he

will not provide any such data to any third party, and that he will retrieve from any third party to the

extent possible any intbrmation previously distributed for safekeeping or the use of that party.

Further, defendant shall simultnneouslydeliverto the Urlited States Attorney's Office orits designee

al1 GPS receivers or eleckonic media of any description upon which such data was formerly or is

cv entlymaintninedforforensic examinationbythe United States. Uponcompletionof suchreview,
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a11 such hardware will be retnrned to defendant, w1111 a11 site location data permanently exptmged.

9. Defendant arees to forfeit to the United States voluntnrily and immediately a11 of llis

right, title and interest to any and a11 assets or theiz proceeds which are subject to forfeiture ptlrsllnnt

to Title 28, United States Code, Section 2461, Title 16, United States Code, Section 3374(a)(1),

(a)(2), and Title 15 Code of Federal Regulations, Section 904.505(*, including the following:

a. One 2006 29' Sea Vee, HlN: SXJ01024K505, including a11 equipment, accessories,

engines, tackle, and trailer.

One 1973 23' T-crafq HlN: 1-C823C781273, including a11 equipment, accessories,

engines, tackle, and trailer.

'Fhe defendant admits that the above listed mssets were fish or wildlife transported, sold,

received, acquired, or purchmsed conkary to the provisions of Title 16, Uzlited States Code, Section

nn3372, or any regulation issued pursllant thereto, or were vessels, vehicles, and other equipment

usedto aid inthe kansporting, selling, receiving, acquiring, orpurchmsing of fish orwildlife, andthat

the defendrmt wms the owner of such vessel, vehicle, or equipment who consented to its use and the

violation involved the sale or ptlrchmse of, or the intent to sell or purchmse fish or wildlife.

10. Defendnnt further apees to fully cooperate and % sist the Govemment inthe forfeiture

of the listed assets orproceeds thereof. 'rhe partiesjointly apee thatthe physicalyassets are no longer

available, andthatthe jubstimte proceeds to approximately $62,000,which nmount shallbe verified

prior to sentencing and adjusted as appropriate to the full value of the proceeds. The United States

apees to consider defendant's fmancial circumstances ms retlected in the Pre-sentence Report, and

to join in recommending a pam ent schedule fort he proceeds. Defendant further knowingly and
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vollmtarily waives the following rights as to %sets subject to forfelture: (1) a11 constitutional, legal

and equitable defenses to the forfeittlre of the mssets in anyjudicial or adminiskative proceeding; (2)

anyjudicial or administrative notice of forfeiture and related deadlines; (3) anyjeopardy defense or

claim of double jeopardy, whether constimtional or statutory; (4) any claim or defense under the

Eighth Amendment to the United States Constitution, including any claim of excessive fme, to the

forfeiture of these œssets by the United States; and (5) any right to appeal any order of forfeiture

entered by the Court pursllnnt to this plea apeement. Defendant further understands that the

forfeiture of these assets or proceeds shall not be treated as satisfaction or offset against any fine,

restitution, cost of imprisonment, or any other penalty this court may impose on the defendant.

11. The defendnntfurtherapees inconsiderationforthe tmdertxkings hereinthathe shall,

within 5 business days of the entry of his plea, surrender to the State of Florida, Fisheries W ildlife

Conservation Commission, any and a1l Commercial Crawfish and Dive Endorsements.

12. Should the defendant, jointly with his co-defendant Titus Werner, at their own

expense and utilizing their own vessels, tmder the supervision of a designee of the Supedntendent

of the FKNM S, recover and remove from the Sanctuary the approximately 200+ artificial habitat

sites employed during their criminal conduct, the parties shalljointly irlform the Court at sentencing

of the propess and results of that effort.

13. n e defendant is aware that the sentence has not yet been determined by the court.

The defendant also is aware that any estimate of the probable sehtencing range or sentence that the

defendnnt may receive, whetherthat estimate comes from the defendant's attorney, the govemment,

or the probation office, is a prediction, not a promise, and is not binding on the govemment, the

probation ox ce or the court. The defendant understands further that any recommendation that the
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govemment makes to the COIM as to sentencing, whether pursllnnt to this apeement or otherwise
,

is not binding on the court and the court may disregard the recommendation in its entirety. The

defendant tmderstands and acknowledges, as previously acknowledged in paragraph 2 above
, that

the defendnnt may not withdraw his plea based upon the court's decision not to accept a sentencing

recommendation made by the defendnnt, the govemment
, or a recommendation made jointly by

both the defendant and the govemment.

14. In further consideration of the undertakings by the United States herein
, and in

recoo tion of the reqlzirements of the Intemal Revenue Code, defendant apees to cooperate with

the IRS in its civil exnmination and determination of any taxes due and owing
, arising f'rom the

events and kansactions described in the Information, and further apees not to conceal or dissipate

funds or property that could be used to satisfy such taxes. Nothing in this apeement shall be taken

to limit the authority of the IRS in its determination of taxes
, interestand penalties, or the

defendant's right to available process to contest such civil determinations.

15. 'I'he defendant is aware that Title 18, United States Codes Section 3742 would

normally G ord the defendant the right to appeal the sentence imposed inthis cmse. Acknowledging

this, in exchange for the undertakings of the United States in this plea agreement
, the defendant

hereby waives a11 rights conferred by Section 3742 to appeal any sentence imposed, including any

restitution order, or to appeal the manner in wltich the sentence was imposed
, unless the sentence

exceeds the maximlzm permitted by statute or is the result of an upward departure from the advisory

guideline range that the court establishes at sentencing. Subject to the preceding provision, this

appeal waiver includes a waiver of the right to appeal the sentence on the ground that under the

advisory Sentencing Gtlidelines range determined by the court, the sentence imposed in tM s cmse
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is not a remsonable sentence. The defendant further understands that nothing in this areement shall

G ect the government's right and/or duty to appeal ms set forth in Title 18, United States Code,

Section 37421). However, if the United States appeals the defendant's sentence pmsxlnntto Section

3742(19, the defendant shall be released from the above waiver of appellate rights. By signing this

apeement, the defendant acknowledges that he has discussed the appeal waiver set forth in this

apeement with his attomey. The defendant further agees, together * 111 the United States, to

requestthat the district court enter a specitk sndingthatthe defendant's waiver of his right to appeal

the sentence imposed in this case was knowing and voluntary.

15. This is the entire apeement and tmderstanding between the United States and
. the

defendant. There are no other apeements, promises, representations, or understnndings.

Respectfully submitted,

T zDate:

z/a/zzDate:

, I.5ltDate: /

W IFREDO A. FERRER

> 1 D STATES A ORNEY

g ' *' ç/By:

'1'h ms A. W atts FitzGerald

Assis t Uited States Attorney

%.

By:

BRUCE A. ZIM ET,

ATTO Y FOR DEFENDANT

,. (.A.r'
..'' #

.,.'
' f .,........ ' '

z KBy
.

USH . M ALTZ

DEFENDANT
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